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REGULAR COUNCIL 

TO:  Mayor and Council  DATE:  May 3, 2010 

FROM:  General Manager, Planning and Development  FILE:  0760‐20 (City 
Centre Library 

SUBJECT:  Award of Contract for Construction of City Centre Library 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Planning and Development Department recommends that Council: 
 
1. Approve the award of a contract covering all of the trades' components related to the 

construction of the City Centre Library, as listed in Appendix I of this report, to Dominion 
Fairmile Construction Ltd., as General Contractor with a maximum total value of 
$26,339,098.00, excluding GST/HST; and 
 

2. Set an expenditure authorization limit for the contract of $27,700,000.00, excluding GST/HST. 
 

PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this report is to obtain Council approval to award a contract related to the 
construction of the City Centre Library. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In April 2009 Council approved funding to commence the design work associated with a civic 
project in City Centre, including a City Hall, a City Centre Library and other public and private 
facilities, consistent with the vision for City Centre. 
 
An infrastructure grant application for the City Centre Library project was submitted and the City 
was successful in achieving a $20 million grant from the federal and provincial governments 
towards the construction of this new flagship library. 
 
On November 16, 2009, Council awarded a contract for the design of the new Library to Bing 
Thom Architects (Corporate Report No. R214). 
On March 1, 2010, Council awarded construction management services (Corporate Report 
No. R043) for the construction of the new Library to Dominion Fairmile Construction Ltd. 
 
Following the same procurement method used to deliver the Cloverdale Multi‐purpose 
Recreation Centre, staff has worked with Dominion Fairmile Construction Ltd. during the design 
and tendering phase of the project to ensure the project remains within budget.  
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The bulk excavation and concrete formworks for the project have already been awarded.  The 
remainder of the project is now ready to award.  The contract that is the subject of this report 
includes all remaining trades, which were tendered in March and April 2010.  These have been 
lumped together and are proposed to be awarded to Dominion Fairmile Construction Ltd. in the 
form of a stipulated price contract. 
 
Request for Quotation Process and Results 
 
Under the City’s RFQ process, each component of this project has been bid separately.  The 
quotation process follows the City’s competitive purchasing policy.  The quotation process was 
published on the City's website, as well as on the BC Bid website.  Contractors for each 
component were invited to submit quotes.  Attached as Appendix I is a summary of the quotes 
from each trade that will be involved in the construction of the project. 
 
Based on an evaluation of the quotes under each trade, the recommended package represents the 
best overall value to the City for the construction of the City Centre Library project.  Funding in 
support of this contract and project will be achieved by way of the above‐referenced grants from 
the other orders of government with the remainder to be made available through the Municipal 
Finance Authority subject to Council approval of the recommendations of a report related to this 
matter that will be included on the same agenda as this report. 
 
This amount combines all components and general contractor's fees, into one stipulated price 
contract. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the above discussion, it is recommended that Council: 
 
• Approve the award of a contract covering all of the trades' components related to the 

construction of the City Centre Library, as listed in Appendix I of this report, to Dominion 
Fairmile Construction Ltd., as General Contractor with a maximum total value of 
$26,339,098.00, excluding GST/HST; and 
 

• Set an expenditure authorization limit for the contract of $27,700,000.00, excluding GST/HST. 
 

 
 
Original signed by 
Jean Lamontagne 
General Manager 
Planning and Development 
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Attachments: 
Appendix I  Budget Summary 
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